
 

 

 
North Central Public Health District 

 

“Caring For Our Communities” 
 

North Central Public Health District 
Board of Health Meeting 
 

December 12, 2017 
3:00 PM 
Meeting Room @ 
NCPHD 

AGENDA  -  
 

1. Minutes 
1. Approve from 10-17-2017 executive committee meeting. 
2. Set Next Meeting Date (1/09/2018) 

 
2. Additions to the Agenda 

 
3. Public Comment 

 
4. Unfinished Business 

1. Public Health Accreditation 
 

5. New Business 
1. TPEP (Tobacco Prevention and Education Program) – Presented by Hayli Eiesland 
2. Domestic Well Testing Presentation – Presented by Jeremy Hawkins 
3. Vital Record Fees 
4. Feeding the Homeless/Indigent 
5. Sherman County Donation 
6. Grant Updates 

a) Public Health Modernization 
b) StePP with CGCC 

7. Financial Report 
8. Approval of A/P Check Report 
9. Contracts 
10. Director’s Report 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Note: This agenda is subject to last minute changes. 
 
Meetings are ADA accessible. If special accommodations are needed please contact NCPHD in advance at (541) 506-
2626.  TDD 1-800-735-2900.  NCPHD does not discriminate against individuals with disabilities. 
 
 

**If necessary, an Executive Session may be held in accordance with: ORS 192.660 (2) (d) Labor Negotiations; ORS 
192.660 (2) (h) Legal Rights; ORS 192.660 (2) (e) Property; ORS 192.660 (2) (i) Personnel** 
 



1 
 

S:\Meeting Minutes & Agendas\Board of Health Meetings\Minutes\2017\BOH Meeting Minutes 10-17-17 DRAFT.doc 

 
  

NORTH CENTRAL PUBLIC HEALTH DISTRICT 
 

“Caring For Our Communities” 
 

419 East Seventh Street 
The Dalles, OR 97058-2676 

541-506-2600 
www.ncphd.org 

North Central Public Health District 
Board of Health  

Meeting Minutes 
October 17, 2017 

 
 

In Attendance:  Commissioner Tom McCoy – Sherman County;  Judge Steve Shaffer – Gilliam County; Commissioner Scott 
Hege – Wasco County;  
 
Staff Present:  Teri Thalhofer, RN/BSN – Director NCPHD; Kathi Hall – Finance Manager NCPHD; John Zalaznik – EH 
Supervisor 
 
Guests Present:  Susan Awmiller 
 
Minutes taken by:  Gloria Perry 
 
Meeting called to order at 10:00am by Chair Scott Hege 
 
 

SUMMARY OF ACTIONS TAKEN 
 
MOTION by Judge Steve Shaffer, second by Commissioner Tom McCoy to accept the 9/12/17 executive committee 
meeting minutes with correction.  
 
Vote:  3-0 
Yes:  Commissioner Tom McCoy, Judge Steve Shaffer, and Commissioner Scott Hege 
Abstain:  0 
Motion Carried 
 
MOTION by Commissioner Tom McCoy, second by Judge Steve Shaffer to approve the Nationwide contact, 
acknowledging legal council’s concerns. 
  
Vote:  3-0 
Yes:  Commissioner Tom McCoy, Judge Steve Shaffer, and Commissioner Scott Hege 
Abstain:  0 
Motion Carried 
 
 
MOTION by Commissioner Tom McCoy, second by Judge Steve Shaffer to accept the A/P Checks Issued report for 
September 2017 as presented. 
 
Vote:  3-0 

http://www.ncphd.org/


2 
 

S:\Meeting Minutes & Agendas\Board of Health Meetings\Minutes\2017\BOH Meeting Minutes 10-17-17 DRAFT.doc 

Yes:  Commissioner Tom McCoy, Judge Steve Shaffer, and Commissioner Scott Hege 
Abstain:  0 
Motion Carried 
 
 
WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS 

 
MINUTES / NEXT MEETING DATE  
1. Approval of past meeting minutes. 

1. A motion was made to approve the 9/12/17 executive committee meeting minutes with correction to the link 
for ICS training. 

2. The link listed in the minutes for ICS training is incorrect.  The correct link to on-line classes is:  
http://training.fema.gov/is/crslist.aspx 

2. Set next meeting date. 
1. Due to scheduling conflicts, there will not be a November executive committee meeting.  Next scheduled 

meeting will be a full board meeting on Tuesday, December 12, 2017 at 3:00pm.  Meeting location will be at 
the North Central Public Health District office located at 419 E. 7th St., The Dalles, OR. 

 
ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
1. None 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
1. Sue Awmiller congratulated Teri Thalhofer and the entire NCPHD staff for their hard work and dedication in achieving 

accreditation status. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
1. Modernization Grant – Letter of Commitment 

1. As a review, Teri explained to the board that the legislature allocated five million dollars this biennium for 
public health modernization.  These funds are going to go out in grants along in tracks of one for capacity 
building, one for implementation to address communicable diseases and health equity while building 
leadership capacity. 

2. Teri talked to our community partners about coming together for this grant opportunity.  Partners consist of 
the following counties:  Hood River, Wasco, Sherman, Gilliam, Union, Umatilla, Baker, Grant, Harney, 
Malheur, Wheeler, Wallowa, Morrow, and Lake.  Our non-governmental partner is the EOCCO. 

3. With the population of all these counties combined we are eligible for $700,000.00 of funding over an 18-
month period. 

4. Part of the grant application is a letter of commitment from commissioners stating that they agree with the 
project and moving forward, and that NCPHD commits to serve as the lead agency in the project. 

5. After discussion there was a consensus among the executive board to sign the letter of commitment.  
 

NEW BUSINESS 
1. Nationwide Roth Contribution Contract Amendment 

1. Legal council had some concerns regarding this contract amendment.  Council wanted some changes made to 
the contract; however this is Nationwide’s boilerplate contract that they use and are not willing to change 
the language. 

2. Teri asked the board for their approval to sign the contract as is. 
3.  After discussion a motion was made to acknowledge legal council’s recommendation and to approve Teri 

Thalhofer to sign the contract as presented from Nationwide. 
 

2. Public Health Accreditation 
1. Teri advised the board that she has received notice that NCPHD has been officially accredited. 
2. Teri commented that she is very proud of the work that staff did in the process of becoming accredited 
3. We will need to file an annual report with the accreditation board.  There are specific areas they want us to 

report on where they felt we had some challenges when they were here for the site review. 
4. Becoming accredited means that NCPHD is meeting best practice standards in our public health work. 



3 
 

S:\Meeting Minutes & Agendas\Board of Health Meetings\Minutes\2017\BOH Meeting Minutes 10-17-17 DRAFT.doc 

5. Something to consider for next year’s budget is the cost to become reaccredited.  The cost is not insignificant 
and we should start planning for it over the next few years so we can be ready to pay those fees when the 
times comes for reaccreditation.   The cost is around $10,000.00. 
 

3. SWAC Overview – Presented by John Zalaznik 
1. Teri explained that the reason she asked John to speak to the board regarding this is because this isn’t the 

kind of work that is the regulatory environmental health, this is the stuff that comes with public health 
modernization and she wanted John to give an overview to the executive board. 

2. John discussed the following: 
a. Big news is that there is no market for recycling. 
b. In September, the information John received from Jim Winterbottom of The Dalles Disposal is that 

they were losing $35.00 a ton and in October they were losing $110.00 a ton to haul it. 
c. Looking at the longevity, it’s not good when you start losing that much money in hauling recyclables 

to Portland. 
d. Contamination Rate 

1. China wants less than 1.5% contamination rates and the United States is not meeting those 
goals. 

2. A lot of the public doesn’t understand recycling and they are using it for garbage. 
3. As of the first of January, the Chinese are going to reduce the contamination rate to .3% 

which is going to make it even stricter and it will be harder to meet those goals. 
4. There is a potential for 220 tons of recyclables going to a landfill in the near future until the 

market changes.  There is really no domestic market for this either. 
e. Licensing Agreement 

1. Our solid waste licensing agreement was written in 1996 and in the agreement it states that 
it needs to be rewritten every 10 years and that hasn’t been happening.  The committee’s 
recommendation is to hire a consultant to rewrite this contract.  If the contract hasn’t been 
rewritten in 21 years there is potential for a lot of money to be missed.  John is not sure if 
an audit has ever been done either. 

2. When the subject comes before Wasco County Commissioners, John encouraged 
Commissioner Hege to vote yes on rewriting this agreement.  John would also like to be 
able to provide input from an environmental health point of view during the rewriting of 
the agreement. 

3. John commented that he asked Commissioner Kramer to look at different rates of like-size 
organizations when considering rates because Oregon residents can take their garbage 
across the river and pay half the cost of what they would pay going to The Dalles Garbage. 

f. Longevity of the Landfill 
1. When there is no recycle capacity people are just going to throw it out and it will increase 

the garbage volume by quite a bit.  The advisory committee always asks for a capacity 
report from the Wasco County landfill and last year it was 79 years and this year it is 48 
years.  If we are potentially adding another 220 tons a month just from Wasco County going 
to our landfill, the capacity and longevity is going to shrink quite a bit.  

2. Waste Connections really wants to bring more garbage in to the area from Metro and it is a 
potential income for Wasco County but when you take a look at that in the long term, 
trying to find another site for garbage disposal for a landfill is almost impossible. 

3. Commissioner Hege found that going from 79 years to 48 years capacity in just one year 
seems like quite a bit and wanted to know the reason for that.  John wasn’t sure if they had 
a different engineering group that did the assessment.  Commissioner Hege would like to 
know if that is the case because 3 years ago it was at 99 years capacity.  He also asked if the 
solid waste advisory committee was looking into this because this is the first that he has 
heard of this and it’s pretty disturbing news.  John replied that Commissioner Kramer is on 
the advisory committee and he asked Wasco County landfill for an explanation; however 
John’s not sure if they can explain it.  They have 210 acres under contract and they have a 
360 acre piece so they are thinking that they can possible expand the landfill but a lot of the 
acreage is really steep and it falls into 3 Mile and it is John’s opinion that a lot of the land is 
not usable. 



4 
 

S:\Meeting Minutes & Agendas\Board of Health Meetings\Minutes\2017\BOH Meeting Minutes 10-17-17 DRAFT.doc 

4. Currently there are not enough members on the committee to provide the over-site 
needed. 

 
4. Addressing Childhood Obesity Case Study 

1. Teri shared with the board a report by the Oregon Health Authority in connection with the Rede Group. 
2. NCPHD was part of the cross-sector partners who worked together to: 

a. Collect and track local data on childhood obesity 
b. Create a broad-based  coalition 
c. Fund a Collective Impact Health Specialist to expand the coalition and secure funding for additional 

projects 
d. Offset restaurant licensing fees for restaurants participating in the Drink Fit program to reduce the 

amount of sugary beverages sold 
3. Some results achieved: 

a. Drink Fit Program 
b. Partners agreeing to increase awareness 
c. Better data 
d. Head Start changed their policies to support children growing up at a healthy weight 

4. Moving forward: 
a. The coalition continues to engage partners to achieve community goals for health food and active 

living.  For example, the City of The Dalles recently updated its transportation plan to include Safe 
Routes to Schools. 

 
5. Grant Applications 

1. Teri provided an update to the board regarding the status of grants that NCPHD has applied for: 
a. We were not successful in a large federal grant that we had applied for which was to reduce 

childhood obesity in the Gorge region. 
b. There are two grants pending with Columbia Gorge CCO.  

1. One is to have a reproductive health program coordinator to work with providers to build a 
system of reproductive health access points.  This would be a 3-year grant funded position.  

2. The other is for funding for an obesity program manager that would do prevention and 
outreach around obesity as well as assist us in obtaining small grants to implement some 
projects such as community gardens & after school programming. 

3. The timeline for how the CCO plans to award these grants is not real clear.  Award process 
can take up to 120 days. 
 

6. Staffing 
1. With some QIM money that we did not anticipate receiving from the CCO we created a program secretary 

position and we filled that internally with Jessie Elias who was one of our Office Specialist working in the 
front office.  We now have an Office Specialist position open and are currently in the process of recruitment. 

2. We also reclassified a position from Community Health Specialist to a Community Engagement Specialist 
which is more of a program manager level.  Position was posted in-house and Judy Bankman applied and was 
promoted to this position. 

3. We are also waiting for CCO funding on a cessation specialist for tobacco.   
 

7. Approval of A/P Check Report (September 2017) 
1. Report presented to the board. 
2. A motion was made to approve the A/P Check Reports for September 2017 as presented. 

 
8. Director’s Report – By Teri Thalhofer 

1. Report presented to the board and feedback requested. 
 

 
Being no further business to be conducted at this time, Commissioner Hege adjourned the board of health meeting at 
10:55PM 
 



5 
 

S:\Meeting Minutes & Agendas\Board of Health Meetings\Minutes\2017\BOH Meeting Minutes 10-17-17 DRAFT.doc 

 
 
 
____________________________________     ____________________ 
Signature        Date 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Printed Name 
 
 
 
 

• {Copy of 9/12/2017 Executive Committee Meeting Minutes, Modernization Grant Letter of Commitment, 
Nationwide Roth Contribution Amendment, OHA Childhood Obesity Case Study handout, A/P Check Report for 
September 2017 and Director’s Report for September 2017 attached and made part of this record.} 



Tobacco 21:  
Legal age to purchase tobacco is now 21 

 
Oregon is the 5th State to raise the 

legal age to purchase tobacco to 21 



When does this go into effect? 

• Senate Bill 754 became law upon the 
signature of Governor Kate Brown on August 
9, 2017.  

• The law applies on January 1, 2018 and 
enforcement activities will begin on that date 



Who enforces this ? 

• The Oregon Health Authority Public Health 
Division is authorized to enforce the minimum 
age of tobacco sales law and coordinates with 
the Oregon State Police to conduct state 
sponsored compliance inspections.  



Why is this so important? 

• Prevent kids from starting tobacco – social circles. 
• The earlier kids start using tobacco, the more at risk 

they are for chronic disease including heart disease, 
asthma and cancer.  

• Most addiction to tobacco starts in adolescence. 
Most adults who smoke report that they started 
smoking before turning 18, and almost all start 
before they turn 26.  

• Reduction in smoking rates and reduce tobacco-
related death. 



What products does this cover? 
• 1. Bidis, cigars, cheroots, stogies, periques, granulated, 

plug cut, crimp cut, ready rubbed and other smoking 
tobacco, snuff, snuff flour, cavendish, plug and twist 
tobacco, fine-cut and other chewing tobaccos, shorts, 
refuse scraps, clippings, cuttings and sweepings of 
tobacco and other forms of tobacco, prepared in a 
manner that makes the tobacco suitable for chewing or 
smoking in a pipe or otherwise, or for both chewing 
and smoking 

• 2. Cigarettes 
• 3. Devices that can be used to deliver tobacco to the 

person using the device. 



Are people ages 18-20 “grandfathered” in?  

• NO 
– There are no exceptions for sales of tobacco 

products or inhalant delivery systems for those 18, 
19, and 20 years old 



What about possession? 

• There currently is no violation for people ages 
18-20 to possess tobacco products or inhalant 
delivery systems.  

• It is unlawful for a person under 18 years of 
age to possess tobacco products or inhalant 
delivery systems.  



Are retailers required to post signs 
with updated sales age requirements? 
• Yes. All retailers that sell tobacco products or 

inhalant delivery systems must display a sign clearly 
stating that the sale of tobacco products and inhalant 
delivery systems to persons under the age of 21 is 
prohibited by law.  
 

• The Oregon Health Authority provides signs for 
download at 
www.healthoregon.org/tobaccoretailsales.  



TPEP - Update 

• Blue Zones Update 
 

• Setting priorities aligning with work-plan 
– Short term vs. long term goals 
– Collaboration with Blue Zone Team and what that 

looks like 
 
 



Continuing Update 
• Partnership development  

– Early learning  
– Next Door 
– Abogadores de la Comunidad/ Mid-Columbia Health Advocates 
 

• ADPEP Collaboration  
 
– State expectations  
– Gilliam, Sherman and Wasco County Collaboration 
– Ongoing challenges 

 
• City of The Dalles 

– Tobacco Free Park Policy: moving forward January 2018 
 
 



North Central Public Health District 
Tobacco Prevention and  

Education Program Coordinator 
Hayli Sharp 

haylie@ncphd.org 
541-506-2609 

 

mailto:haylie@ncphd.org


Jeremy Hawkins 
North Central Public Health District 

 
 

 
 

Improving Domestic Well Stewardship 
In North Central Oregon 



Project Background 

• $7,500 grant from OHA’s Domestic Well Safety 
Program to improve domestic well 
stewardship. 

• Partnered with City of The Dalles Water 
Quality Lab and OSU Extension Services. 

• Subsidized water quality testing for 
community members who get their drinking 
water from a private well. 



Test Source Interpretation Remedy 

Total Coliform 
Bacteria / E. coli 

Enters well through 
groundwater, 
surface water run-
off, cracked or 
broken well parts, 
poor construction, 
or leaking septic 
tanks  

Qualitative Hyperchlorination 
of the system based 
on volume of the 
well, chlorine 
concentration, and 
contact time. 

Nitrate High rates are 
usually linked to 
human activities 
including animal 
manure, human 
sewage waste, and 
commercial 
fertilizers 

Quantitative: 
Maximum 
Contaminant Level 
(MCL) = 10.00 ppm 

Distillation, Ion 
Exchange, or 
Reverse-Osmosis 
Filters 

Contaminants 



Public Health Implications of Nitrate 
Exposure 

Group Health effects 

Infants Methemoglobinemia, birth defects 

Pregnant Women Anemia, threatened abortion, 
preeclampsia, spontaneous abortion 

Adults Elevated risk of certain cancers(?) 



Wasco Sherman Gilliam 
TCB 7 9 4 
E. Coli 4 2 1 
Nitrate >MCL 1 6 3 
Elevated Nitrate 4 15 5 

7 

9 

4 4 

2 
1 1 

6 

3 
4 

15 

5 

0 

2 

4 

6 

8 

10 

12 

14 

16 
RE

SU
LT

S 

Summary of Lab Results 



Nitrate Results Map 



Key Takeaways on Nitrates 

1. Methemoglobinemia is the most important 
adverse health effect caused by excessive 
nitrate/nitrite exposure. 

2. Maternal exposure to environmental nitrates and 
nitrites may increase the risk of pregnancy 
complications such as anemia, threatened 
abortion/premature labor, or preeclampsia. 

3. Epidemiological investigations and human 
toxicological studies have not shown an 
unequivocal relationship between nitrate intake 
and the risk of cancer. 
 



Key Takeaways for our Counties 
1. Though limited in sample size, our data shows a trend of 

elevated or high nitrate levels in Sherman and Gilliam county. 
2.  The Public Health District does not have funding to continue 

this project (testing more wells, investigating sources of 
contamination, helping community members pay for 
remediation). 

 
Questions for Board Members: 
1. Is this something that we think should be investigated 

further? 
2. Are there water resource partners in our counties that would 

benefit from seeing this information that may have funding to 
pick up where we left off? 



References 
1. Atsdr.cdc.gov. (2017). Nitrate/Nitrite Toxicity 2013: What 

Are the Health Effects from Exposure | ATSDR - 
Environmental Medicine & Environmental Health 
Education - CSEM. [online] Available at: 
https://www.atsdr.cdc.gov/csem/csem.asp?csem=28&po=
10 [Accessed 7 Dec. 2017]. 

2. EWG. (2017). Health Effects of Nitrate Exposure. [online] 
Available at: https://www.ewg.org/research/pouring-
it/health-effects-nitrate-exposure [Accessed 7 Dec. 2017]. 

3. Penn State Extension. (2017). Nitrates in Drinking Water. 
[online] Available at: https://extension.psu.edu/nitrates-
in-drinking-water [Accessed 7 Dec. 2017]. 



Change in fees for vital records effective 
January 1, 2018

What is the change in fees? The fee for a certificate will remain $25. Fees for additional 
copies of a record will now also be $25. For more information and for a list of fees see 
www.healthoregon.org/feechanges

What are vital records? Vital records are the legal registration of a vital event. A vital 
event is a birth, marriage, divorce or death. Every vital event that occurs in Oregon must 
be recorded and permanently stored with the Center for Health Statistics, also known as 
Oregon Vital Records. Certified copies of the record are printed on special paper and are 
known as certificates — birth certificates, death certificates or marriage certificates. 

Why are certificates important? A birth certificate is a legal document used to establish 
identity. It shows who you are, and when and where you were born. You need a birth 
certificate to enroll a child in school; to get a Social Security card, a driver’s license or 
government benefits; or to apply for a passport. 

The death certificate is the official legal record of death. A death certificate is needed to 
settle the affairs of your loved one. It has information about the person who died and the 
cause of their death. Insurance companies, the Social Security Administration and other 
agencies may ask for certified copies of the death certificate as proof of death. 

How are the fees used? Fees for vital records support these services provided by state 
and county vital records offices:

• Registering and storing vital records:

Each vital event in Oregon is registered and stored with the state vital records office. 
Information comes from hospitals for births, funeral homes for deaths, county clerks 
for marriage and the courts for divorce. The state vital records office must make sure 
each vital record has complete and legal information, and is numbered and indexed 
so each one can be easily found. Any changes made to the records at any time must 
be documented and tracked. Currently, the state vital records office has more than six 
million vital records and adds about 128,000 each year. Many of the vital records are 
now registered and stored electronically. 

PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION
Center for Health Statistics

www.healthoregon.org/chs | Phone: 971-673-1190 | FAX: 971-673-1203

(Continued on reverse)

http://www.healthoregon.org/feechanges
http://www.healthoregon.org/chs


2

This document can be provided upon request in an alternate format for individuals with disabilities or in a language 
other than English for people with limited English skills. To request this publication in another format or language, 
contact the Center for Health Statistics at 971-673-1190 or 711 for TTY.

OHA 9770 (10/2017)

PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION

Center for Health Statistics  
www.healthoregon.org/chs 
Phone: 971-673-1190 
FAX: 971-673-1203

• Screening and processing orders for certificates:

More than 170,000 orders for certificates are completed by Oregon Vital Records each 
year. County vital records offices can issue death and birth certificates for the first six 
months after the event. Vital records are confidential and access is limited to specific 
people for 100 years for birth records and 50 years for the other records. All orders are 
screened to make sure only persons that are eligible can get them. Screening also is a 
way to prevent fraud and identity theft. 

• Analyzing data from vital records:

Some of the most important facts about the health of Oregonians come from vital records. 
Information about low birth weight babies and access to prenatal care is gathered from 
birth certificates. Death rates, life expectancy measures and information on leading causes 
of death come from death certificates. 

For more information, go to www.healthoregon.org/feechanges or call 971-673-1190.

http://www.healthoregon.org/chs
http://www.healthoregon.org/feechanges


2018 Vital Records Fee Schedule 
 

Not all services shown. See rules for complete information. 
 
 

Services Current Fee 

New fee Jan. 1, 

2018 

Fee collected by 

Birth Certificates -- First Copy $25.00 $25.00 County & State 

-- Each Additional Copy $20.00 $25.00 County & State 

Death Certificates -- First Copy $25.00 $25.00 County & State 

-- Each Additional Copy $20.00 $25.00 County & State 

Marriage (& ORDP) Certificates -- First Copy $25.00 $25.00 State only 

-- Each Additional Copy $20.00 $25.00 State only 

Divorce (dissolution of ORDP) Certificates 

-- First Copy 
$25.00 $25.00 State only 

-- Each Additional Copy $20.00 $25.00 State only 

Expedited Order $7.00 $7.00 * State only 
Amendments $35.00 $35.00 State only 

Certificate Replacement Fee ** $5/per replacement $5/per replacement County & State 

Verification Fee $10/first 5 for free $10/first 5 for free State only 

Certified copy of birth record requested as 

image (no discounts for additional copies) 

 
                   $30.00 

 
$30.00 

 
State only 

Pre-adoption birth record $30.00 $30.00 State only 

Contact Preference form $25.00 $25.00 State only 

Amendment expedite fee $30.00 $30.00 State only 

 

* County can charge this fee if orders are submitted via the Internet or phone with a credit card and are processed within 3 business days. 

** One free certified copy for birth records; no replacement fee if only medical amendment for death records. 

 

 
Revised 5/25/2017 



 
  

NORTH CENTRAL PUBLIC HEALTH DISTRICT 
“Caring For Our Communities” 

419 East Seventh Street, The Dalles, OR  97058 

Phone: 541-506-2600 Fax: 541-506-2601  

Website: www.ncphd.org 

 

Why is safe food particularly important for indigent and homeless people?  

People are especially vulnerable to life-threatening consequences from food borne illness when they lack 
housing, access to medical care, and other social and economic resources.  
 

What is the risk of providing home prepared food to people who are hungry? 
 
If food is not properly handled, it can make people very ill.  Food borne illnesses are caused by bacteria, 
viruses, parasites, chemicals, or toxins causing symptoms like nausea, cramps, diarrhea, fever, and vomiting.  
Paralysis or death may result.   
 

Foods prepared in a home kitchen lack many environmental controls found in commercial kitchens or 
restaurants.  Some examples include: inadequate hand washing after diapering babies or handling pets may 
occur; or improper storage of hazardous materials or raw meat may result in cross-contamination of food 
products leading to illness.  Also lack of sanitizing food contact surfaces may spread germs, and inadequate 
refrigeration may allow the growth of germs or the formation of toxins in food. Licensed facilities like 
restaurants are designed and monitored to minimize these risks. 

What does Environmental Health consider as safe food?  

North Central Public Health District routinely inspects operations serving food to the public as a requirement for 
meeting Oregon statutes and rules.  Food is considered safe when it comes from an approved source 
inspected by Environmental Health, USDA or the Oregon Department of Agriculture. No home-prepared foods 
are allowed.  

 

What can I do to provide safe food that meets the requirements of Oregon laws? 

Your help can go a long way in providing safe food for people who are homeless.  Most soup kitchens, 
churches, and other benevolent organizations prepare safe food for the homeless in licensed kitchens that are 
evaluated twice a year.  You might consider donating to one of these organizations or find out if these licensed 
kitchens are available for your use to prepare foods.  For more information on donating food, contact the 
Oregon Food Bank:  
1-800-777-7427 or visit info@oregonfoodbank.org.   

 
Are there alternatives to providing food through a benevolent organization? 
 

1. You may obtain donated food from a licensed facility such as a restaurant or grocery store and 
transport it directly to the site where the food will be dispensed.   

 

2. You may purchase food and prepare it at the dispensing site by following requirements for setting up a 
temporary restaurant.  No license is required for donating the food to needy people. 

 
How do I learn more about preparing safe meals?  
Check out the food safety links at www.mchealthinspect.org.  

 

mailto:info@oregonfoodbank.org
http://www.mchealthinspect.org/


Perishable foods can be stored safely for up
to a week (or to the labeled  expiration date)
in your refrigerator at or below 41˚F.
Hot foods may be kept safely at
140˚F or above.  Temperatures
between 41˚F to 140˚F are
good for growing germs,
which is known as the Danger

Zone.  Perishable foods in
the Danger Zone more

than four hours may
produce enough germs to
make people ill.  If food has
been left out over four hours

or your refrigerator breaks down
for more than four hours, throw away the
food.  It is not worth the risk of
experiencing foodborne illness.

Use a five-inch long metal
stem thermometer to check food
temperatures.  A thermometer
with a temperature range from 0˚F
to 220˚F is recommended and 
can be purchased at the local

supermarket or department store.
You can then check hot and cold
food temperatures using the same
thermometer.  Always wash off the
thermometer’s metal stem before

using it.  The metal stem will not
shatter and ruin your food like a

glass thermometer will.

You can ensure the thermometer is
accurate by calibrating it in a glass of ice water.
After a few minutes, the thermometer should

show a temperature around 32˚F.
If it needs to be adjusted, use 
a small wrench to turn the
hexagonal nut under the gauge
until the thermometer reads
32˚F when left sitting in the
ice water.

Leftovers or foods
prepared a day ahead of
serving require proper cooling
to limit the growth of germs.  The cooling
process must drop food below 41˚F within four
hours to avoid major germ growth.  When
cooling warm foods, do not leave out at room
temperature. After food temperature drops
below 140˚F, place food in an uncovered

shallow pan for rapid cooling and store in
refrigerator immediately.  Set pan where it
will not be exposed to contamination from

other items such as raw meat juices.

For large containers of hot food, rapid
cooling will be more difficult.  Food near
the edge of the container will cool much
faster than the food in the middle.

Cooling can be done faster if food is
divided into smaller containers and stored

separately in the refrigerator.  Do not stack
warm foods together as this prevents cooling
in the middle of the stack.  Do not cover 

foods until the product has cooled to 41˚F.

Another method of cooling large containers
of warm food is to use an ice water bath.  Set
container of food in a clean sink or tub of cold
water with ice cubes.  Be sure the ice water
level on the outside of the container is at least
as high as the food level inside the container.
Also, be careful not to splash any dirty water
into the food.

Minimum Cooking
Temperatures

Poultry (chicken, turkey, etc.),
stuffed meats, stuffing containing
meat 165˚F

Ground beef (hamburger), ground
fish (fish cakes) 155˚F

Pork and pork products 145˚F

Eggs, fish, and other foods 145˚F

Follow label directions for cooking 
commercially prepared foods.
Reheat all leftovers thoroughly 
to 165˚F or above.

Microwave cooking directions:
Rotate or stir midway through
cooking. Heat to at least 165˚F
in all parts.  Let stand covered 
for an additional two minutes.

If in doubt, cook all foods
thoroughly to 165˚F.

Personal Hygiene: 
It’s In Your Hands

Always wash your hands before
handling food and utensils.  Hands 
can move germs from pets, restrooms,
garbage, diapers, and runny noses onto
food you eat.  Use soap and scrub
thoroughly, especially under fingernails,
and rinse with warm water.  Dry hands
with clean paper towels.

Raw meats often carry
germs, which can make
you sick.  Wash your
hands immediately after
handling raw meats
and before you touch
other foods, door
handles, or equipment.
Also, wash hands after touching
your mouth, after smoking, coughing, 
or eating in the kitchen.

If you are sick or have any type 
of infection, do not prepare any food.
Give yourself a break and let someone
else cook.  Another option
is to buy meals
prepared at a
restaurant or 
grocery store. 

Disposable gloves
may offer additional
protection, especially if 
you have cuts or wounds on
your hands.  Gloves need to
be changed immediately 
after handling raw meats.

Cooking to the proper temperature
will kill the harmful germs in raw 

foods that cause foodborne illness.
The guide below lists internal

temperatures to be met or
exceeded throughout the food.

Test the food with your metal
stem thermometer.  For large

containers or roasts, check
temperatures in several spots.

Uneven heating may result in
food cooking unevenly.

Food Temperatures: 
Avoid the Danger Zone



FOOD SAFETY HINTS

Simplify recipes. The more heating and
cooling steps in a recipe, the more chance

germs have to grow.  Eliminate
unnecessary steps and combine

processes if possible.

Keep preparation time short.
Try to prepare meals less than
a day in advance.  Otherwise
risky foods will need to be
cooled for overnight storage,
then reheated the next day.
Either procedure, if not

correctly done, will allow germs to grow.

Big meals need big kitchens. If you plan to
prepare a large quantity of food, consider using
a licensed commercial kitchen.  These facilities

normally have larger preparation
and storage areas.  Their
equipment is designed to 
heat and cool foods rapidly.

[Home-style refrigerators can
keep foods cold enough but are

usually not designed to cool down large
amounts of food quickly.  They lack large 
fans to blow cold air around food
items for rapid cooling.]

Remember, it is easier
and much less stressful
to take preventive steps
for food safety than to
have friends, family, or
you suffer from food-
borne illness.

For more information,
visit the Multnomah County

Health Department’s food safety
website at

www.mchealthinspect.org
or call the Environmental Health 

Section at 503-988-3400

Preparing
Safe 

Meals
A guide 
for your 

home 
kitchen

Separate Foods: 
Don’t Cross Contaminate

People may become sick when 
their food is exposed to germs or toxic
chemicals in your home.  Prevent
contamination by storing dry foods 
in metal or glass containers with tight-
fitting lids to keep insects and rodents
out.  Be sure cleaning supplies and
pesticides are labeled properly
and stored away from or below
food items.  Do not store foods
under water or sewage pipes that
may leak or drip.  Keep foods stored
off the floor to avoid contamination from
mop water, sewage back-ups, or spills.

Raw meats may look fine but should
always be treated as if contaminated
with germs.  Cooking to the proper
temperature will kill the germs.
Until the meat is cooked, store in
your refrigerator away from and
below other foods.  Keep raw
meat juices from dripping onto foods
that will not be cooked before eating,
like lettuce or cold cuts.  Raw meats that
are wrapped may still leak so store them
away from and below other foods.

Cutting boards should be scrubbed
with detergent and rinsed with hot 
water after each use and especially after
preparing raw meats.  Sanitize cutting
boards after washing with a mild bleach
water solution using a teaspoon of
bleach per gallon of water.   After
sanitizing, let the cutting boards air 
dry allowing time for the chlorine in 
the bleach water to kill any germs.

Protect friends, 
family, and yourself 
from illness caused 
by foods prepared 

in your kitchen.  
This guide will 
describe some 
simple tips for 

preparing 
safe food.



REV
($3869 INT EARNED & $2361 SAIF DIV.)

REV Septic & Vital Records^

EXP

REV Ipad & Prev. Pays grnt^

EXP

REV Imm Fees^

EXP

REV
EXP

REV
EXP

REV EH Fees $5000 ;̂ EOCCO

EXP (more FTE)

REV HV prog. Don. $45,000

EXP (more FTE)

REV
EXP

REV Pacific Source $25,700

EXP Grant carryover

REV
EXP

REV Imm Fees^

EXP

REV
EXP

REV Dom Wells grant

EXP

REV
EXP

REV
EXP

REV
EXP

REV
EXP

TOTAL REVENUE
TOTAL EXP

Prct 

Recap Report

Account Number
Adjusted 

Appropriation
YTD EXP YTD 

REV Balance
201                PUBLIC HEALTH FUND

201.23.7141  PUBLIC HEALTH 517,281.00 523,029.31

1,500.00

201.23.7143  MCH - CAH 79,206.00 87,233.25 -58,635.82

138,114.00

201.23.7142  WIC 186,385.00 190,808.30

201.23.7145  STATE SUPPORT 40,657.00 37,678.49 3,096.23

110.13

201.23.7144  REPRODUCTIVE HEALTH 322,549.00 277,464.11

201.23.7148  PERINATAL HEALTH 75,736.00 154,820.01 -9,579.00

92.67

201.23.7146  ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 90,339.00 100,598.22

201.23.7149  PHEP 180,149.00 177,291.45 3,801.14 98.41

201.23.7153  IMMUNIZATION SPECIAL PAYM 18,264.00 18,012.93 594.07

201.23.7152  HEALTH PROMOTION 163,938.00 119,543.89 -35,843.89

201.23.7154  CACOON & CCN 66,223.00 37,286.43 19,273.13 56.30

11,772.76

100.62

201.23.7156  WATER 42,179.00 45,251.32 2,593.15 107.28

201.23.7155  TOBACCO PREV & ED 93,619.00

96.62

201.23.7159  OREGON MOTHERS CARE 13,925.00 14,090.90 -6,842.90 101.19

201.23.7158  BABIES FIRST 232,167.00 224,331.24

0.00 0.00 0.00

201.23.7500  PASS THROUGH 10,000.00 15,300.00 -600.00

42,184.00

214,951.00

7,124.00

10,000.00

2,374,117.00
2,374,117.00

2,116,941.30

201.00.1201  NON-DEPARTMENTAL

2,070,548.58
-46,392.72

87.21
89.17

153.00

201.23.7999  NON-DEPARTMENTAL 241,500.00

14,700.00

0.00

180,201.00

76,918.00

17,744.00

51,758.00

93,619.00
94,201.45

109.84

101.74

147.00

0.00

18,607.00

56,559.56

93,619.00

47,844.47

236,104.00

7,248.00

105,182.00

104.86

109.28

100.00

113.42

-582.45

98.63

72.92

204.42

101.11

-14,038.19

122.2828,597.43

65.88

95,200.00

102.37
103.62

4,139.23 111.36

23,386.00

254,541.00

41,564.00

-109,784.24 86.02

103.69

176,770.11

100.49

108.82

167,679.87

40,774.72

104,737.45

145,241.01

181,092.59

83,700.00

6,130.06 408.67

7/1/2016 to 6/30/2017

98.10

110.02

138.09

637,643.00

170,602.00

661,143.31



S:\Meeting Minutes & Agendas\Board of Health Meetings\BOARD PACKETS\Board Packets 2017\12. December 
2017\sept 2017 quarterly recap report

REV

REV
EXP

REV
EXP

REV
EXP

REV
EXP

REV
EXP

REV Lic. Fac. Fees Due in Jan.

EXP

REV Schwab Charitable

EXP

REV
EXP

REV Mileage reimb.

EXP

REV
EXP

REV
EXP

REV
EXP

REV
EXP

REV
EXP

REV
EXP

REV
EXP

REV
EXP

TOTAL REVENUE
TOTAL EXP

2.98

19.79

937.69 0.34

-19,160.43 22.28

31.998,249.18

171,693.00

163,966.42 24.46

41,337.00

23.92

24.08

22.36

27.99

7.05

36,478.00

-14,596.82

27.54

42,935.43

10,210.78

7,821.00

5,791.50

44,390.00

167.99

-4,615.46

110,923.00

194,282.00

25.97

9.09

2,351.71

21.82
25,786.00

192,002.00

0.17

25.06

28.02

8,463.58

19.66

20.55

16.16

18.30

21.03

19.33

0.00

4,677.00

3,905.00

23,460.00

12,420.00

39,328.00

1,524.00

2,900.00

0.00

161,190.00

101,023.00

18,006.00

42,958.00

93,619.00
14,996.42

487,620.50

201.00.1201  NON-DEPARTMENTAL

414,020.99
-73,599.51

17.45
20.55

10.67

201.23.7999  NON-DEPARTMENTAL 202,687.00

44,326.00

214,939.00

7,248.00

15,000.00

2,372,758.00
2,372,758.00

0.00 0.00 0.00

201.23.7500  PASS THROUGH 15,000.00 1,600.00 1,300.00

27.54

201.23.7159  OREGON MOTHERS CARE 14,702.00 3,654.34 -2,130.34 24.86

201.23.7158  BABIES FIRST 254,695.00 70,140.96 -30,812.96

15.68

201.23.7156  WATER 44,592.00 14,600.48 -2,180.48 32.74

201.23.7155  TOBACCO PREV & ED 95,641.00

201.23.7154  CACOON & CCN 48,279.00 10,503.88 -6,598.88 21.76

201.23.7153  IMMUNIZATION SPECIAL PAYM 17,332.00 3,407.55 1,269.45

201.23.7152  HEALTH PROMOTION 85,294.00 17,528.11 -17,360.12

201.23.7149  PHEP 167,375.00 40,371.51 4,018.49 24.12

201.23.7148  PERINATAL HEALTH 186,810.00 30,182.17 -24,390.67

19.07

201.23.7146  ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 121,084.00 26,981.43

201.23.7144  REPRODUCTIVE HEALTH 290,774.00 57,532.25

186,440.00 45,952.46

67,819.00 14,796.99

201.23.7145  STATE SUPPORT 41,207.00 7,859.07

201                PUBLIC HEALTH FUND

201.23.7141  PUBLIC HEALTH 533,027.00 127,512.88

201.23.7143  MCH - CAH

201.23.7142  WIC

Recap Report

Account Number
Adjusted 

Appropriation
YTD EXP YTD 

REV

7/1/2017 to 9/30/2017

273,000.00

670,285.00

Balance Prct 

0.00

24.65

-6,547.81

36,453.54



Check Date Check 
Number

Vendor Name Amount

10/10/2017 401 IRS $10,826.87 
10/10/2017 402 ASIFLEX $295.00 
10/10/2017 403 P E R S $11,415.52 
10/10/2017 404 OREGON STATE, DEPT OF REVENUE $2,559.86 

Reserved in Que 405 OREGON STATE, EMPLOYMENT DEPT Reserved in Que

10/25/2017 406 IRS $11,266.98 
10/25/2017 407 ASIFLEX $295.00 
10/25/2017 408 P E R S $11,748.14 
10/25/2017 409 OREGON STATE, DEPT OF REVENUE $2,666.32 
10/5/2017 12056 CIS TRUST $25,178.67 
10/6/2017 12057 CITY OF THE DALLES $600.00 
10/6/2017 12058 HENRY SCHEIN $585.04 
10/6/2017 12059 HPSRX ENTERPRISES INC $100.15 
10/6/2017 12060 MID-COLUMBIA FIRE & RESCUE $630.00 
10/6/2017 12061 OFFICE DEPOT $609.00 
10/6/2017 12062 OPTIMIST PRINTERS $160.00 
10/6/2017 12063 OREGON COALITION OF LOCAL, HEALTH 

OFFICIALS INC
$2,136.61 

10/6/2017 12064 OREGON STATE, DEPT OF ENVIRONMENTAL 
QUA

$1,200.00 

10/6/2017 12065 PUBLIC HEALTH ACCREDITATION, BOARD $500.00 

10/6/2017 12066 RICOH USA INC. $156.12 
10/6/2017 12067 SAIF CORPORATION $503.19 
10/6/2017 12068 SATCOM GLOBAL INC. $118.33 
10/6/2017 12069 SMITH MEDICAL PARTNERS LLC $544.88 
10/6/2017 12070 SPARKLE CAR WASH, LLC $40.50 
10/6/2017 12071 STAEHNKE, DAVID $118.84 
10/6/2017 12072 THE DALLES CHRONICLE $351.70 
10/6/2017 12073 THE DALLES NAPA AUTO PARTS INC $10.99 
10/6/2017 12074 UPS $162.52 
10/6/2017 12075 US BANK $2,616.84 
10/6/2017 12076 WASCO COUNTY $583.40 
10/9/2017 12077 BEERY ELSNER & HAMMOND LLP $987.00 
10/9/2017 12078 MID-COLUMBIA MEDICAL CENTER $360.00 
10/9/2017 12079 U.S. CELLULAR $342.28 
10/9/2017 12080 WASCO COUNTY $153.78 
10/17/2017 12081 CA STATE DISPURSEMENT UNIT $231.50 
10/17/2017 12082 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTION $2,530.00 
10/18/2017 12083 AHLERS & ASSOCIATES $910.00 
10/18/2017 12084 CAPEK, M.D., MICHAEL $11.45 
10/18/2017 12085 COLUMBIA GORGE RADIOLOGY, PC $52.00 
10/18/2017 12086 CYTOCHECK LABORATORY LLC $165.50 
10/18/2017 12087 H2OREGON BOTTLED WATER INC. $53.65 
10/18/2017 12088 LACHINO-VALENTE ORTEGA, CECILIA $500.00 
10/18/2017 12089 LANGUAGE LINE SERVICES, INC. $21.45 
10/18/2017 12090 MID-COLUMBIA MEDICAL CENTER $332.30 

PAYROLL A/P 

PAYROLL A/P (EFT)

NCPHD
Accounts Payable Checks

Issued October 2017



10/18/2017 12091 OFFICE DEPOT $568.83 
10/18/2017 12092 OPTIMIST PRINTERS $224.00 
10/18/2017 12093 OR STATE PUBLIC, HEALTH LABORATORY $200.15 

10/18/2017 12094 OREGON STATE, DEPT OF HUMAN SERVICES $10,000.00 

10/18/2017 12095 SHRED-IT USA $90.00 
10/18/2017 12096 SMITH MEDICAL PARTNERS LLC $4,154.71 

TOTAL:  $109,869.07 

NCPHD Board of Health authorizes check numbers 12056 - 12096 and payroll EFT numbers 
401 - 409 totalling $109,869.07.

Signature  _____________________________ Date:____________

Printed Name  _Scott Hege



Check Date Check 
Number

Vendor Name Amount

11/9/2017 410 IRS $12,033.78 
11/9/2017 411 ASIFLEX $295.00 
11/9/2017 412 P E R S $12,259.18 
11/9/2017 413 OREGON STATE, DEPT OF REVENUE $2,856.04 
11/24/2017 414 IRS $12,175.15 
11/24/2017 415 ASIFLEX $295.00 
11/24/2017 416 P E R S $12,189.50 
11/24/2017 417 OREGON STATE, DEPT OF REVENUE $2,882.32 
11/2/2017 12097 CA STATE DISPURSEMENT UNIT $231.50 PAYROLL A/P
11/2/2017 12098 CIS TRUST $25,165.62 
11/2/2017 12099 HENRY SCHEIN $149.73 
11/2/2017 12100 OREGON STATE, DEPT OF ENVIRONMENTAL 

QUA
$800.00 

11/2/2017 12101 OREGON STATE, DEPT OF HUMAN SERVICES $28.00 

11/2/2017 12102 PUBLIC HEALTH ACCREDITATION, BOARD $700.00 

11/2/2017 12103 QWIK CHANGE LUBE CENTER INC. $45.80 
11/2/2017 12104 SMITH MEDICAL PARTNERS LLC $758.10 
11/2/2017 12105 STAEHNKE, DAVID $87.57 
11/2/2017 12106 TOTAL ACCESS GROUP INC $242.72 
11/2/2017 12107 UPS $103.20 
11/2/2017 12108 US BANK $1,072.46 
11/13/2017 12109 AHLERS & ASSOCIATES $910.00 
11/13/2017 12110 BEERY ELSNER & HAMMOND LLP $376.00 
11/13/2017 12111 H2OREGON BOTTLED WATER INC. $83.40 
11/13/2017 12112 MID-COLUMBIA MEDICAL CENTER $315.00 
11/13/2017 12113 OFFICE DEPOT $892.97 
11/13/2017 12114 OPTIMIST PRINTERS $128.00 
11/13/2017 12115 RICOH USA INC. $158.79 
11/13/2017 12116 SAIF CORPORATION $505.92 
11/13/2017 12117 SATCOM GLOBAL INC. $57.90 
11/13/2017 12118 SPARKLE CAR WASH, LLC $24.30 
11/13/2017 12119 STRATUS AUDIO, INC. $33.66 
11/13/2017 12120 WASCO COUNTY $779.74 
11/15/2017 12121 CA STATE DISPURSEMENT UNIT $231.50 
11/15/2017 12122 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTION $1,265.00 
11/16/2017 12123 CYTOCHECK LABORATORY LLC $92.50 
11/16/2017 12124 INTERPATH LABORATORY INC. $36.23 
11/16/2017 12125 OPTIMIST PRINTERS $144.00 
11/16/2017 12126 OREGON PUBLIC HEALTH INSTITUTE $250.00 
11/16/2017 12127 OREGON STATE, DEPT HUMAN SERVICES-

OFS
$1,239.00 

11/16/2017 12128 SMITH MEDICAL PARTNERS LLC $239.41 
11/16/2017 12129 U.S. CELLULAR $342.99 
11/20/2017 12130 OFFICE DEPOT $191.00 
11/20/2017 12131 OREGON 4-H FOUNDATION $75.00 

PAYROLL A/P 

NCPHD
Accounts Payable Checks

Issued November 2017

PAYROLL A/P (EFT)



11/27/2017 12132 CA STATE DISPURSEMENT UNIT $231.50 
11/27/2017 12133 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTION $1,265.00 
11/29/2017 12134 CURASCRIPT SPECIALTY, DISTRIBUTION $5,865.30 

11/29/2017 12135 HENRY SCHEIN $108.84 
11/29/2017 12136 NORTH WASCO CO SCHOOL DIST. 21 $250.00 
11/29/2017 12137 OFFICE DEPOT $150.61 
11/29/2017 12138 OR STATE PUBLIC, HEALTH LABORATORY $120.40 

11/29/2017 12139 QWIK CHANGE LUBE CENTER INC. $25.90 
11/29/2017 12140 SMITH MEDICAL PARTNERS LLC $3,169.18 

TOTAL: $103,929.71 

NCPHD Board of Health authorizes check numbers 12097 - 12140 and payroll EFT numbers 
410 - 417 totalling $103,929.71.

Signature  _____________________________

Printed Name  _Scott Hege

PAYROLL A/P 



















































OHA - 2017-2019 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
154126 TLH AMENDMENT #1 PAGE 1 OF 6 PAGES 

 
Agreement #154126 

 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO OREGON HEALTH AUTHORITY 
2017-2019 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR THE 

FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, this document is available in alternate formats such as 
Braille, large print, audio recordings, Web-based communications and other electronic formats. To request an 
alternate format, please send an e-mail to dhs-oha.publicationrequest@state.or.us or call 503-378-3486 (voice) 
or 503-378-3523 (TTY) to arrange for the alternative format. 

 This First Amendment to Oregon Health Authority 2017-2019 Intergovernmental Agreement for the 
Financing of Public Health Services, effective July 1, 2017 (as amended the “Agreement”), is between the State 
of Oregon acting by and through its Oregon Health Authority (“OHA”) and Gilliam, Wasco, and Sherman 
Counties, acting by and through its North Central Public Health District (“LPHA”), the entity designated, 
pursuant to ORS 431.003, as the Local Public Health Authority for Gilliam, Wasco, and Sherman Counties. 

RECITALS 
WHEREAS, OHA and LPHA wish to modify the Financial Assistance Award set forth in Exhibit C of 

the Agreement.  

WHEREAS, OHA and LPHA wish to modify the Exhibit J information required by 2 CFR Subtitle B 
with guidance at 2 CFR Part 200; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, covenants and agreements contained herein and 
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties 
hereto agree as follows 

AGREEMENT 
1. Section 1 of Exhibit C entitled “Financial Assistance Award” of the Agreement is hereby superseded 

and replaced in its entirety by Attachment A attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 
Attachment A must be read in conjunction with Section 3 of Exhibit C, entitled “Explanation of 
Financial Assistance Award” of the Agreement. 

2. Exhibit J “Information required by 2 CFR Subtitle B with guidance at 2 CFR Part 200” is amended to 
add to the federal award information datasheet as set forth in Attachment B, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

3. LPHA represents and warrants to OHA that the representations and warranties of LPHA set forth in 
Section 2 of Exhibit E of the Agreement are true and correct on the date hereof with the same effect as if 
made on the date hereof. 

4. Capitalized words and phrases used but not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in 
the Agreement. 

5. Except as amended hereby, all terms and conditions of the Agreement remain in full force and effect. 

6. The parties expressly ratify the Agreement as herein amended. 

7. This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts, all of which when taken together 
shall constitute one agreement binding on all parties, notwithstanding that all parties are not signatories 
to the same counterpart.  Each copy of this Amendment so executed shall constitute an original. 





OHA - 2017-2019 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
154126 TLH AMENDMENT #1 PAGE 3 OF 6 PAGES 

Attachment A 
Financial Assistance Award 

 

 
 

      State of Oregon Page 1 of 3

 1) Grantee    2)  Issue Date   This Action
Name:  North Central Public Health District  August 24, 2017     AMENDMENT

        FY2018
Street:   419 E. 7th Street,  Room 100    3)  Award Period
City:   The Dalles      From July 1, 2017 Through June 30, 2018
State:   OR Zip Code: 97058-2676
 4) OHA Public Health Funds Approved

Previous Increase/ Grant
Program Award (Decrease) Award

8,321 0 8,321
   ( e )

622 0 622
   ( g,h )

28,500 0 28,500
   ( k,n )

143,440 0 143,440
   ( d )

93,833 0 93,833

151,439 6,119 157,558
   ( b,c,m )

33,808 0 33,808
   ( a )

8,973 0 8,973
   ( i )

13,914 0 13,914
   ( i, j )

32,466 0 32,466
   ( i,j )

4,781 0 4,781
   ( i )

15,313 0 15,313

   PROG.
    COST    APPROV

Oregon Health Authority
Public Health Division

PE 40 Women, Infants and Children

PE 41  Reproductive Health Program
      FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES

PE 01  State Support for Public Health

PE 03 TB Case Management

PE 11 Oregon Climate and Health Collaborative

      $5,787  must be expended for Breastfeeding Promotion.

PE 42 Babies First

PE 42 MCH/Child & Adolescent Health -- General Fund

PE 12 Public Health Emergency Preparedness

      FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES

      FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES

PE 13 Tobacco Prevention & Education

PE 42 MCH-TitleV -- Child & Adolescent Health
      FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES
PE 42 MCH-TitleV -- Flexible Funds

   a) $33,808  Award amount is estimated for FY2018. OHA/PHD has not received the Notice of Grant
      Award for the title X funding. Adjustment might be needed once the Notice of Award is received.
   b) The July-September 2017 grant is $473,979 ; $8,796  must be expended for Nutrition Education. 
      $1,929  must be expended for Breastfeeding Promotion.
   c) The October-June FY2018 grant is $113,580  ; $22,716  must be expended for Nutrition Education. 

 5)  FOOTNOTES:

      FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES

      FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES
PE 42 MCH/Perinatal Health -- General Fund
      FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES

   d) $143,440  Award amount is estimated for FY2018. OHA/PHD has not received the Notice of Award
      for funding.  Adjustments might be needed once Notice of Award has been received by OHA/PHD.
   e) $8,321   Award amount is estimated for the period from 7/1/17-9/30/17.  OHA/PHD has not yet
     received the funding amount for Fiscal Year 2018. Adjustments might be needed once the
     funding is received by OHA/PHD.

     PROGRAM         ITEM DESCRIPTION

     ment with a purchase price in excess of $5,000 and a life expectancy greater than one year.

  6) Capital Outlay Requested in This Action:
     Prior approval is required for Capital Outlay.  Capital Outlay is defined as an expenditure for equip-



OHA - 2017-2019 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
154126 TLH AMENDMENT #1 PAGE 4 OF 6 PAGES 

 

 
 

      State of Oregon Page 2 of 3

 1) Grantee    2)  Issue Date   This Action
Name:  North Central Public Health District  August 24, 2017     AMENDMENT

        FY2018
Street:   419 E. 7th Street,  Room 100    3)  Award Period
City:   The Dalles      From July 1, 2017 Through June 30, 2018
State:   OR Zip Code: 97058-2676
 4) OHA Public Health Funds Approved

Previous Increase/ Grant
Program Award (Decrease) Award

6,103 0 6,103
   ( i,j )

18,704 0 18,704

7,500 0 7,500
   ( l )

42,184 0 42,184
   ( f )

   PROG.
    COST    APPROV

PE 49 Private Domestic Wells & Public Health

PE 50 Safe Drinking Water Program

Oregon Health Authority
Public Health Division

PE 42 MCH Title V -- Oregon MothersCare
      FAMILY HEALTH SERVICES
PE 43 Immunization Special Payments

       by more than one fund type, however, federal funds may not be used as match for other federal

  6) Capital Outlay Requested in This Action:

   f) $42,184   Award amount is estimated for Fiscal Year 2018.  OHA/PHD has not yet received the
     Notice of Award for the funding. Adjustments might be needed once the Notice of Award
     is received by OHA/PHD.
   g) $122  Award amount for the period 7/1/2017 - 12/31/17 must be spent by 12/31/2017.
   h) $122   Award amount for period from 1/1/2018 - 6/30/2018 is estimated.  OHA/PHD has not yet 
     received the Notice of Award for that period's funding. Adjustments might be needed once the 

       funds (such as Medicaid).
   j) Funds for the MCH Title V programs for the period of 7/1/17-9/30/17 must be spent by 9/30/17.

     Notice of Award is received by OHA/PHD.
   i) Funds will not be shifted between categories or fund types.  The same program may be funded

 5)  FOOTNOTES:

     PROGRAM         ITEM DESCRIPTION

     ment with a purchase price in excess of $5,000 and a life expectancy greater than one year.
     Prior approval is required for Capital Outlay.  Capital Outlay is defined as an expenditure for equip-

   k) $28,500  Must be spent by August 31st, 2017.



OHA - 2017-2019 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
154126 TLH AMENDMENT #1 PAGE 5 OF 6 PAGES 

 

 
 
 

      State of Oregon Page 3 of 3

 1) Grantee    2)  Issue Date   This Action
Name:  North Central Public Health District  August 24, 2017     AMENDMENT

        FY2018
Street:   419 E. 7th Street,  Room 100    3)  Award Period
City:   The Dalles      From July 1, 2017 Through June 30, 2018
State:   OR Zip Code: 97058-2676
 4) OHA Public Health Funds Approved

Previous Increase/ Grant
Program Award (Decrease) Award

    TOTAL 609,901 6,119 616,020

   PROG.
    COST    APPROV

Oregon Health Authority
Public Health Division

 5)  FOOTNOTES:
   l) $7,500   Award amount is estimated for Fiscal Year 2018.  OHA/PHD has not yet received the
     Notice of Award for the funding. Adjustments might be needed once the Notice of Award
     is received by OHA/PHD.
   m) The July-September portion must be spent by September 30th, 2017.  $5,866  is the year-end
       one-time funding adjustment.  $253  is the second fresh fruit and veggies grant adjustment.
   n) $28,500   Award amount is estimated for Fiscal Year 2018.  OHA/PHD has not yet received the
     Notice of Award for the funding. Adjustments might be needed once the Notice of Award
     is received by OHA/PHD.

     ment with a purchase price in excess of $5,000 and a life expectancy greater than one year.

     PROGRAM         ITEM DESCRIPTION

  6) Capital Outlay Requested in This Action:
     Prior approval is required for Capital Outlay.  Capital Outlay is defined as an expenditure for equip-



OHA - 2017-2019 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES 
 

 
154126 TLH AMENDMENT #1 PAGE 6 OF 6 PAGES 

Attachment B 
Information required by CFR Subtitle B with guidance at 2 CFR Part 200 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PE 40: WIC NSA
Federal Award Identification 

Number(FAIN):
Federal Award Date: 02/01/17
Performance Period:

Federal Awarding Agency:

CFDA Number: 10.557
CFDA Name:

Total Federal Award: 24,757,038     
Project Description: WIC Program 

Awarding Official: 
Indirect Cost Rate: 16.41%

Research And Development(Y/N): N

Agency/Contractors Name DUNS 
Total Initial 
FY18 Award

Base award 
adjustment

Increase Year-
end one-time 

funding, 
$7/part.

Increase 2nd 
fresh fruit and 

veggie grant

Revised July-
Sept 2017 

Award

Of the Grant, 
this must be 

spent on 
Nutrition Ed

Of the Grant, 
this must be 
spent on BF 
Promotion

Oct 2017 - Jun 
2018 Grant

Of the Grant, 
this must be 

spent on 
Nutrition Ed

Of the Grant, 
this must be 
spent on BF 
Promotion

Revised FY18 
Award

NORTH CENTRAL PHD 032640580 151,439.38$     -$              5,866.00$      253.00$          43,979$         8,796$              1,929$              113,580$          22,716$           5,787$            157,558$       

12-3510-0-1-605

10/01/17-9/30/18
Department of Agriculture/Food and Nutrition Service

Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women Infants 

Debra Whitford Debbie.Whitford@fns.usda.gov



































   

NORTH CENTRAL PUBLIC HEALTH DISTRICT 
 

“Caring For Our Communities” 
 

Directors Report for the Board of Health 
December 12, 2017 

 
 
WOW!!! What a year for NCPHD!!!! 
 
Here’s a summary of what we’ve been up to in the last few months: 
 

• Our collaborative work with the 4Rivers Early Learning HUB continues in 
full force.  We have been working as part of a logistics team for a key 
project of the HUB, Our Kids Network.  The Network is a data base that 
serves as a central site for referral to services as well as a curator of 
information which would be helpful for pregnant and parenting families.  
We look forward to rolling out the Network in the 5 counties in the New 
Year.  Additionally, we will be sharing a position with the parenting HUB 
arm of 4RELH to provide Community Health Worker capacity in Gilliam 
and Sherman Counties.  This staff person will help replace some of the ‘in 
community’ presence we had prior to the retirement of Eloise Mortimore, 
RN. 

 
• Grant writing is never ending.  NCPHD is serving as the lead agency for an 

OHA grant to move toward a modernized public health system adding to the 
foundational capabilities of leadership and organizational competencies, 
health equity and cultural responsiveness, community partnership 
development, assessment and epidemiology, prevention and health 
promotion, policy and planning, and communications all in the foundational 
program area of communicable disease control.  The grant will focus on 
regional work to decrease rates of gonorrhea.  There are 13 partner counties, 
along with EOCCO and the Mid-Columbia Health Equity Advocates.  
Although 2 counties who are members of EOCCO were not able to provide 
letters of commitment for the application, they will still be able to participate 
in all the resources and training and learning opportunities.  We are very 
excited to move forward in this work.  I was honored to be asked to present 
on our proposal at the Association of Oregon Counties Convention.   

 
• We continue to work with regional partners to address issues that lead to 

poor health outcomes.  We were successful in securing some funding 
through CGHC to develop local tobacco cessation resources and systems.   



 
• We also secured some funding to institute an evidence based recess program 

in Hood River Schools to reduce childhood obesity.  We are hopeful that 
additional funding will be available to scale the program to additional 
counties.  

 
• We are still waiting to hear the outcome of some additional funding 

opportunities.   As always, we look to the strategic plan, approved by the 
Board of Health, for alignment with those priorities. 

 
Again this month, at a full board meeting, you will hear presentations around 
program areas at NCPHD.  We currently have programs scheduled to present 
through March of 2019.  Please let me know if there is something specific you 
would like to know more about and we will get you the information. 
 
Wishing you all a healthy 2018.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Teri Thalhofer, RN, BSN 
Director, NCPHD 
 
 


	Agenda
	10-17-17 Meeting Minutes
	Tobacco 21 Presentation
	Domestic Well Presentation
	OHA Vital Records Fee Increase
	2018 Vital Records Fee Schedule
	Feeding the Homeless/Indigent
	Food Safety for Homeless Persons
	June 2017 Quarterly Fiscal Report
	Sept 2017 Quarterly Fiscal Report
	A/P Check Report for October 2017
	A/P Check Report for November 2017
	Nationwide Agreement
	Nationwide Agreement Amendment
	NCPHD Clinical Affiliation Agreement with CGCC
	NCPHD EHR and DSA Agreement with Reliance
	OHA 154126-1
	PacificSource Letter of Agreement
	Readiness Center Agreement
	WIC - Lachino Agreement
	Director's Report



